
 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

 
2.00 pm MONDAY, 21ST JUNE, 2021 

 
 

REMOTE MEETING - MICROSOFT TEAMS 
 

 
Please note that today’s meeting will be recorded.  

  
This recording may be broadcast on the Authority’s internet and it may be used for training 

purposes by the Democratic Services Department. 
 

All attendees will be in view of the camera and, by attending you are consenting to being filmed 
and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings being used as outlined above. 

 

 
 

This Agenda has been prepared by the Democratic Services Department. Any 
member of the public requiring information should contact the department on (01685) 

725284 or email democratic@merthyr.gov.uk. 
 

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be 
found on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers  

 

AGENDA 

1. Appointment of Chair   

2. Appointment of Vice Chair   

3. Apologies for absence   

4. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct 
 
Note: 
 

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and 

 
(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 

as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave 

 

5. Audit Wales - Annual Audit Summary 2020 - 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council  

 

 To receive report of Audit Wales. 
 

5 - 12 

6. Audit Enquiries to those charged with Governance 
and Management 2020/21  

 

 To consider report of the Interim Chief Executive 
 

13 - 26 

7. Audit Wales Letter to Committee Chairs   

 To receive a letter from Audit Wales. 
 

27 - 28 

8. Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 
and Proposed Updated Committee Terms of 
Reference  

 

 To receive report of the Head of Regional Internal 
Audit Services 
 

29 - 36 

9. Annual Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2021/22   

 To receive report of the Head of Regional Internal 
Audit Services 
 

37 - 50 

10. Governance and Audit Committee Forward Work 
Programme 2021/22  

 

 To receive report of the Head of Regional Internal 
Audit Services 
 

51 - 56 



11. Internal Audit Information Reports   

 To receive copies of Published Internal Audit 
reports for Members Information. 
 

57 - 58 

12. Reflection and Evaluation of Meeting   

 To receive an update from the Chair 
 

 

13. Any other business deemed urgent by the Chair   

 

 
COMPOSITION: 

 
Councillors     C T Jones (Chair) 
                       D Roberts (Vice-Chair) 

  
 Councillors:     J Amos, D Chaplin, J Davies, 

D Sammon, C Tovey and J Thomas 
 
Lay Member(s): R Williams 
 
Together with appropriate officers 
 

  
 

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284 

 

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

About the Council 

Some of the Services the Council provides 

 

Key facts 

The Council is made up of 33 councillors who represent the following political parties: 
• Independent Group 16 
• Labour 15 
• Park and Dowlais Independent Group 2 

 

The Council spent £117.4 million on providing services during 2019-20, the lowest spend of the 
22 unitary councils in Wales. 

As at 31 March 2020 the Council had £15.9 million of usable revenue financial reserves. This is 
equivalent to 14% of the Council’s annual spend on services, the tenth lowest percentage of the 
22 unitary councils in Wales. 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Annual audit summary 2020 

This is our audit summary for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council. 
It shows the work completed since the last Annual Improvement 
Report, which was issued in October 2019. Our audit summary 
forms part of the Auditor General for Wales’ duties. 

 
More information about these duties can be found on our website. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5

https://www.audit.wales/


Key facts 

The County Borough has 8 (22%) of its 36 areas deemed the most deprived 10% of areas in 
Wales, this is the second highest of the 22 unitary councils in Wales.1 

The County Borough’s population is projected to increase by 4.3% between 2020 and 2040 
from 60,567 to 63,154, including a predicted 4.4% decrease in the number of children, no 
change in the number of working age population and a 27.1% increase in the number of people 
aged 65 and over.2 

 

The Auditor General’s duties 

We complete work each year to meet the following duties 
• Audit of Accounts 

Each year the Auditor General audits the Council’s financial statements 
to make sure that public money is being properly accounted for. 

• Value for money 
The Council has to put in place arrangements to get value for money for  
the resources it uses, and the Auditor General has to be satisfied that it  
has done this. 

• Continuous improvement 
The Council also has to put in place arrangements to make continuous improvements, 
including related plans and reports, and the Auditor General has to assess whether the 
Council is likely to (or has) met these requirements. 

• Sustainable development principle 
Public bodies need to comply with the sustainable development principle when setting 
and taking steps to meet their well-being objectives. The Auditor General must assess 
the extent to which they are doing this.  

 
1 An area in this context is defined as a ‘Lower Super Output Area’. Source: Stats Wales 
2 Source: Stats Wales 

Page 6



Since the Spring of 2020, the ongoing pandemic has affected 
our audit work. We recognise the huge strain on public services 
and have reshaped our work programme, and found new ways 
of working to reduce its impact on public bodies’ response to  
COVID-19, while still meeting our statutory duties. 

What we found 

Audit of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s 2019-20 
Accounts 
 
Each year we audit the Council’s financial statements. 

For 2019-20: 
• The Auditor General gave an unqualified true and fair opinion on the Council’s financial 

statements on 26 November 2020. The opinion included two emphasis of matter 
paragraphs to draw the readers’ attention to specific accounts disclosures regarding 
material valuation uncertainties over the Council's property assets and property 
investments funds relating to the pension fund. 

• The Council’s Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report were prepared in 
line with the CIPFA Code and relevant guidance. They were also consistent with the 
financial statements prepared by the Council and with our knowledge of the Council. 

• A good quality of draft statements was presented for audit on 28 July 2020. 

• A number of changes were made to the Council’s financial statements arising from our 
audit work, which were reported to the Audit Committee in our Audit of Financial 
Statements Report on 23 November 2020. 

• In addition to the Auditor General’s responsibilities for auditing the Council’s financial 
statements, he also has responsibility for the certification of a number of grant claims 
and returns. Our work did not identify any significant issues. 

• The Auditor General issued the certificate confirming that the audit of accounts for 2019-
20 has been completed. 

• Key facts and figures from the 2019-20 financial statements can be accessed here.  

 
To meet the Auditor General’s duties we complete specific 
projects, but we also rely on other audit work, and the work 
of regulators such as Care Inspectorate Wales and Estyn 
(the education inspectorate). We take the findings of our 
audit work into account when assessing whether the council 
has put in place arrangements to secure value for money. 
Our findings and conclusions are summarised below. 

Page 7

https://audit.wales/infographics/local-council/merthyr-tydfil-county-borough-council


Well-being of Future Generations Examination – The delivery 
of the Flying Start Programme (February 2020) 
The examination that we undertook in 2019-20 considered the extent to which the Council has 
acted in accordance with the sustainable development principle when taking steps to deliver 
the Flying Start Programme. We concluded that the Council has a number of positive 
examples of how it has acted in accordance with the sustainable development principle when 
delivering the Flying Start Programme, but the Council recognises that its application of the 
five ways of working can be further strengthened. The report can be viewed here.  

Continuous Improvement 
The Auditor General certified that the Council has met its legal duties for improvement 
planning and reporting, and believes that it is likely to meet the requirements of the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure 2009 during 2020-21. 

Financial Sustainability (March 2020) 
During 2019-20 we examined the financial sustainability of each Council in Wales. In Merthyr 
Tydfil County Borough Council, we concluded that despite a higher than expected settlement, 
the Council’s financial position is still challenging, and failure to deliver to budget or make 
planned savings risks depleting reserves to a low level. The report can be viewed here.  

Assessment of progress to address key concerns (March 
2021) 
This report sets out our assessment of the Council’s progress in addressing the concerns 
identified in our letter issued to the Council in May 2019, and those identified in the September 
2019 John Gilbert report, and the December 2019 Improvement and Assurance Board’s Rapid 
Assessment report. We concluded that the Council has shown resilience in its response to 
recent challenges and had made progress in developing an improvement plan, but it urgently 
needs to address its lack of capacity to drive the transformation needed, and use its available 
resources to strengthen its resilience over the medium to long term. 

National Fraud Initiative 
In October 2020, the Auditor General published his report on the findings of the latest National 
Fraud Initiative (NFI) data-matching exercise in Wales. The exercise helped public bodies  
in Wales, including the 22 unitary authorities, identify fraud and overpayments amounting to  
£8 million. The report can be accessed on our website here. NFI continues to be developed and 
in the forthcoming NFI exercise (NFI 2020-22) local authorities will have access to matches 
designed to help identify potential fraudulent applications for COVID-19 business support grants.  

Other Inspectorates 
We also took into account the reports of Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW) and Estyn as well as 
any subsequent actions taken by the Council in response.  
In January 2021, Estyn wrote to the Council’s Chief Executive outlining the outcome of their 
review of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s work in supporting their learning 
communities in schools and pupil referral units (PRUs) during the period from March to 

Page 8

https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/merthyr_council_wfg_flying_start_programme_english_11.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/m_9.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/sites/default/files/NFI_interactive_PDF_2018_20_eng_0_10.pdf


October 2020.  The report highlighted a number of cameos including: collaborative, multi-
disciplinary working; provision of childcare for key workers over the Easter holiday period and 
adapting the support provided by the youth service to respond to emerging challenges. Also 
relevant is Estyn’s National report, ‘Local authority and regional consortia support for schools 
and PRUs in response to COVID-19 - Update report from June to November 2020’, published 
in January 2021. The report can be viewed here.  

 
In January 2020 CIW published an inspection report of older adults services. The report can 
be viewed here. CIW held a local authority performance review meeting in October 2020 and 
also undertook a 5 day performance evaluation inspection during October identifying strengths 
and areas for improvement. 

Local Government Studies 
As well as local work at each council, each year we also carry out studies across the local 
government sector to make recommendations for improving value for money. Since the last 
annual improvement report we have published the following reports:  

Review of Public Services Boards (October 2019) 
We inspected how Public Service Boards are operating; looking at their membership, terms of 
reference, frequency and focus of meetings, alignment with other partnerships, resources and 
scrutiny arrangements. We concluded that Public Services Boards are unlikely to realise their 
potential unless they are given freedom to work more flexibly and think and act differently.  
The full report can be viewed here. 

Progress in implementing the Violence Against Women, 
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Act (November 2019) 
We examined how the new duties and responsibilities of the Violence against Women, 
Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence (Wales) Act are being rolled out and delivered.  
We found that victims and survivors of domestic abuse and sexual violence are often let  
down by an inconsistent, complex and fragmented system. The full report can be viewed here. 

Rough Sleeping in Wales – Everyone’s Problem; No One’s 
Responsibility (July 2020) 
We looked at how well public services are responding to the issue of rough sleeping. Overall, 
we found that responding to COVID-19 is an opportunity for public bodies to start addressing 
long standing weaknesses in partnership working which has stopped them from tackling rough 
sleeping in the past. The full report can be viewed here.  

Page 9

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/thematic-report/local-authority-and-regional-consortia-support-schools-and-prus-response-covid-19
https://careinspectorate.wales/sites/default/files/2020-01/200108-inspection-of-older-adults-services-merthyr-tydfil-county-borough-council-en.pdf
https://www.audit.wales/publication/review-public-services-boards
https://www.audit.wales/publication/progress-implementing-violence-against-women-domestic-abuse-and-sexual-violence-act
https://www.audit.wales/publication/rough-sleeping-wales-everyones-problem-no-ones-responsibility


Better Law Making (September 2020) 
This report draws on five reports published between 2019 and today looking at how local 
authorities are responding to the challenge of implementing new legislation. Implementation is 
a complex task which needs to be fully thought through by the Welsh Government and the 
Senedd whenever they bring forward and make any new legislation. The paper highlights the 
difficulties faced by local authorities and their public sector partners in implementing their new 
responsibilities. The full report can be viewed here. 

Commercialisation in Local Government (October 2020) 
Councils have conducted commercial activity for a long time, and many councils are exploring 
additional commercial opportunities to mitigate against the financial pressures they face. Our 
report is specifically targeted at helping elected members and senior officers to examine and 
judge the potential impact on their organisations when considering whether to undertake 
commercialisation. It will also help councils to demonstrate how well they are discharging their 
value for money responsibilities. The full report can be viewed here. 

Work carried out in 2020-21 
We also looked at the key challenges and opportunities facing the Council. These risks could 
have an effect on the Council’s ability to meet its legal obligations in relation to the sustainable 
development principle, the use of its resources and continuous improvement. 
The most significant risk and issue facing councils and the wider public sector during 2020-21 
was the COVID-19 pandemic. We have shaped our work to provide assurance and challenge 
in a way which helps to support the Council through this period. Our work for 2020-21 
included: 

• Assessment of progress to address key concerns; 
• Recovery planning in response to the COVID-19 pandemic; 
• Covid-learning project – helping to identify and share learning;  

from the way in which public bodies have responded to the pandemic; 
• Assurance and risk assessment; and 
• A review of the Council’s financial sustainability. 

Page 10

https://www.audit.wales/publication/better-law-making-implementation-challenge
https://www.audit.wales/publication/commercialisation-local-government


 

 

 
The Auditor General is independent of government, and is appointed by Her Majesty the Queen. 
The Auditor General undertakes his work using staff and other resources provided by the Wales 
Audit Office, which is a statutory board established for that purpose and to monitor and advise the 
Auditor General. The Wales Audit Office is held to account by the Senedd. 
The Auditor General audits local government bodies in Wales, including unitary authorities, police, 
probation, fire and rescue authorities, national parks and community councils. He also conducts 
local government value for money studies and assesses compliance with the requirements of the 
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2009. 
Beyond local government, the Auditor General is the external auditor of the Welsh Government 
and its sponsored and related public bodies, the Senedd Commission and National Health Service 
bodies in Wales. 
Audit Wales is the non-statutory collective name for the Auditor General for Wales and the 
Wales Audit Office, which are separate legal entities with their own legal functions, as described 
above. Audit Wales is not a legal entity. 
We welcome correspondence and telephone calls in Welsh and English. Corresponding in Welsh 
will not lead to delay. Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth a galwadau ffôn yn Gymraeg a Saesneg.  
Ni fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi. 

This document is also available in Welsh. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

Audit Enquiries to those Charged with Governance 
and Management 2020/21 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 Audit Wales must audit the Council’s financial accounts for 2020/21 in compliance 

with International Standards of Auditing. 
 
1.2 In response to Audit Wales’ request the Council has indicated its views on a number 

of governance areas impacting upon the audit of accounts, relevant to both 
management and ‘those charged with governance’. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The Council’s response to Audit Wales’ request for information in respect of 

management and governance set out in Appendices 1 to 3 be noted. 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 Audit Wales in its audit of the Council’s financial accounts for the year ended 31st 

March 2021 is required to conduct the audit in accordance with the requirements set 
out in International Standards of Auditing (ISA’s). 

 
3.2 As part of the requirements of the ISA’s Audit Wales wrote to the Chief Finance 

Officer and Chair of Council (the Mayor) on 30th March 2021 seeking views on a 

Date Written 8th April 2021 

Report Author Steve Jones 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 21st June 2021 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



number of governance areas impacting upon the audit of accounts, relevant to both 
management and ‘those charged with governance’. 

 
3.3 Those areas of governance where views were sought are identified in Appendixes 1 

to 3 and encompass: 
 

o Matters in Relation to Fraud – Appendix 1 
o Matters in Relation to Laws and Regulations – Appendix 2 
o Matters in Relation to Related Parties – Appendix 3 

 
3.4 The information provided by the Council would assist Audit Wales in understanding 

the Council’s business processes and support its work in arriving at an audit opinion 
for the 2020/21 accounts. 

 
3.5 The Council’s response to Audit Wales’ requirements is included as Appendices 1 to 

3 and is completed following consultation with the former Mayor as Chair of Council 
for 2020/21, the Cabinet Member for Governance and Corporate Services, Head of 
Legal and Democratic Services, Chief Finance Officer and Head of the Regional 
Internal Audit Service. 

 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 
 
ELLIS COOPER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
MTCBC 2020/21 – Audit 
Enquiries to those 
Charged with 
Governance and 
Management 
 

 
30th March 2021 

  
Finance Department 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 14



 

 

Appendix 1 

Matters in relation to fraud 

 
International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 240 covers auditors 
responsibilities relating to fraud in an audit of financial statements. 
 
The primary responsibility to prevent and detect fraud rests with both management 
and ‘those charged with governance’, which for Merthyr Tydfil County Borough 
Council is the Council. Management, with the oversight of those charged with 
governance, should ensure there is a strong emphasis on fraud prevention and 
deterrence and create a culture of honest and ethical behaviour, reinforced by active 
oversight by those charged with governance. 
 
As external auditors, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error. We are 
required to maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit, considering the 
potential for management override of controls. 

What are we required to do? 

 
As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to consider the risks of 
material misstatement due to fraud. This includes understanding the arrangements 
management has put in place in respect of fraud risks. The ISA views fraud as either: 

 the intentional misappropriation of assets (cash, property, etc); or 

 the intentional manipulation or misstatement of the financial statements. 

 
We also need to understand how those charged with governance exercises oversight 
of management’s processes. We are also required to make enquiries of both 
management and those charged with governance as to their knowledge of any actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud and for identifying and responding to the risks of fraud and 
the internal controls established to mitigate them.

Page 15



 

Enquiries of management - in relation to fraud 

Question 2020-21 Response 

1. What is management’s 
assessment of the risk 
that the financial 
statements may be 
materially misstated due 
to fraud and what are the 
principal reasons?  

Risk is low since budget monitoring statements are 
produced throughout the year involving a number of 
service accountants and service managers. Scrutiny 
and challenge undertaken by Chief Finance Officer, 
Budget Board and Cabinet. In addition, the base data 
required for the preparation of the financial statements 
is the responsibility of a number of inter Departmental 
officers. Chief Finance Officer reviews the completed 
Statement of Accounts. Also, the Regional Internal 
Audit Service provides an objective review of systems 
and procedures.  

2. What processes are 
employed to identify and 
respond to the risks of 
fraud more generally and 
specific risks of 
misstatement in the 
financial statements? 

Counter fraud activity undertaken by the Regional 
Internal Audit Service. 

The Council’s Internal Audit Activity and its work 
programme/work with management to raise their 
awareness of the risk of fraud.  

Reports to Governance and Audit Committee (member 
awareness and involvement) and officer attendance at 
Governance and Audit Committee to discuss areas of 
identified weakness or where fraud has been 
perpetrated and planned action/responses. 

Special investigation work undertaken by the Internal 
Audit Activity and also in conjunction with management 
and HR when deemed appropriate/required. 

Council constitution, financial procedure rules, 
procurement and contracting rules, policies and 
procedures e.g. Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, 
Whistleblowing Policy. Fraud related policies have 
been reviewed and are currently being updated. 

Service and Corporate risk registers. 

Codes of Conduct for staff and members. 

Induction training. 

Professionally qualified staff including Auditors and 
Accountants. Ongoing training and CPD. 

Access to technical materials/learning centres/shared 
resources e.g. CIPFA technical information service, 
Welsh Chief Auditor Group information network.  

Page 16



 

Networking with other LA internal audit and counter 
fraud services and sharing of information. 

Use of the National Anti-Fraud Initiative and the 
National Anti-Fraud Network. 

National Anti-Fraud Initiative data matching exercises. 

The Chief Accountant in preparing the Statement of 
Accounts co-ordinates the annual closure of account 
process and with the assistance of the Group 
Accountants is satisfied that the financial statements 
are not misstated. The Chief Finance Officer reviews 
the completed Statement of Accounts drawing on 
former 20 years of responsibility for completing the 
accounts to provide additional assurance. 

3. What arrangements are 
in place to report fraud 
issues and risks to the 
those charged with 
governance? 

Council policies and procedures e.g. Anti-Fraud and 
Corruption Policy, Whistleblowing Policy. 

Reports to Governance and Audit Committee (member 
awareness and involvement) and officer attendance at 
Governance and Audit Committee to discuss areas of 
identified weakness or where fraud has been 
perpetrated and planned action/responses. 
Governance and Audit Committee (work programme 
and reports etc). 

The Council’s Internal Audit Activity. 

Reports published by the Internal Audit Activity. 

Special Investigation work and reports produced by the 
Regional Internal Audit Service. Regional Internal Audit 
Service Annual Report and Opinion. 

Annual Governance Statement. 

4. How has management 
communicated 
expectations of ethical 
governance and 
standards of conduct and 
behaviour to all relevant 
parties, and when? 

A number of policy documents are available on the 
Council’s intranet site, including:  

 Employee Code of Conduct.  

 Staff Handbook.  

 Culture Statement.  

 Whistleblowing process and survey. 

 HR policies and procedures. 

5. Are you aware of any 
instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged 
fraud within the audited 

All known or suspected fraud type activity that Internal 
Audit were/are aware of has been investigated, 
reported on where appropriate and records retained 

Page 17



 

body since 1 April 2020? within the Regional Internal Audit Service. Although 
there have been individual investigations undertaken 
by the Regional Internal Audit Service, Management is 
unaware of any material level of fraud being 
committed. The Council is advised of any such 
incidents through: 

 Regional Internal Audit Service annual report and 
opinion, including performance information on 
fraud investigations. 

 Audit reports to Governance and Audit 
Committee in respect of fraudulent activity 
identified or suspected. 

 Audit Wales and other external regulator reports. 

Page 18



 

Enquiries of those charged with governance – in relation to fraud 

Question 2020-21 Response 

1. How does the Council, 
exercise oversight of 
management's processes 
for identifying and 
responding to the risks of 
fraud within the audited 
body and the internal 
control that management 
has established to mitigate 
those risks? 

 Audit Committee.  

 Scrutiny Committees.  

 Cabinet and Council reports and work 
programme.  

 Risk registers (Service and Corporate).  

 Internal Audit Activity providing assurance 
via its annual work programme, strategic 
work programme and annual report and 
opinion.  

 Providing framework/guidance documents 
e.g. corporate and departmental policies, 
procedures and rules (financial procedure 
rules). 

2. Are you aware of any 
instances of actual, 
suspected or alleged fraud 
with the audited body since 
1 April 2020? 

All known or suspected fraud type activity that 
Internal Audit were/are aware of has been 
investigated, reported on where appropriate and 
records retained within the Internal Audit Service. 
Although there have been individual investigations 
undertaken by Internal Audit the Council is 
unaware of any material level of fraud being 
committed. 

The Council is advised of any such incidents 
through:  

 Internal Audit annual report and opinion, 
including performance information on fraud 
investigations.  

 Audit reports to Audit Committee in respect 
of fraudulent activity identified or suspected.  

 WAO and other external regulator reports. 

 

Page 19



 

Appendix 2 

Matters in relation to laws and regulations 

International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 250 covers auditors’ 
responsibilities to consider the impact of laws and regulations in an audit of financial 
statements. 

Management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, the Council is 
responsible for ensuring that Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s operations are 
conducted in accordance with laws and regulations, including compliance with those 
that determine the reported amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

As external auditors, we are responsible for obtaining reasonable assurance that the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement due to fraud or error, taking 
into account the appropriate legal and regulatory framework. The ISA distinguishes 
two different categories of laws and regulations: 

 laws and regulations that have a direct effect on determining material amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements; and 

 other laws and regulations where compliance may be fundamental to the 
continuance of operations, or to avoid material penalties. 

What are we required to do? 

 
As part of our risk assessment procedures we are required to make inquiries of 
management and the Council as to whether Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is 
in compliance with relevant laws and regulations. Where we become aware of 
information of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance we need to gain an 
understanding of the non-compliance and the possible effect on the financial 
statements.

Page 20



 

Enquiries of management – in relation to laws and regulations 

Question 2020-21 Response 

1. How have you gained 
assurance that all relevant laws 
and regulations have been 
complied with? 

The Annual Governance Statement requires 
officers with corporate wide skills, roles and 
responsibilities to comment on and demonstrate 
the effectiveness or otherwise of arrangements 
and controls in respect of corporate governance. 
This feeds into the Annual Governance 
Statement with significant impact from the 
Monitoring Officer and Chief Finance Officer. 

2. Have there been any instances 
of non-compliance or suspected 
non-compliance with relevant 
laws and regulations since 
1 April 2020, or earlier with an 
ongoing impact on the 2020-21 
financial statements? 

Management is not aware of any non-
compliance. 

3. Are there any potential 
litigations or claims that would 
affect the financial statements? 

Management is not aware of any such events. 

4. Have there been any reports 
from other regulatory bodies, 
such as HM Revenues and 
Customs which indicate non-
compliance? 

None. 

 

Page 21



 

Enquiries of those charged with governance – in relation to laws and regulations 

Question 2020-21 Response 

1. How does the Council, in its role 
as those charged with 
governance, obtain assurance 
that all relevant laws and 
regulations have been complied 
with?  

All party Scrutiny Committees encompassing all 
Council services are held every 6 weeks based 
on a forward planning scrutiny programme and 
provide a robust challenge to Cabinet and 
officers. The Governance and Audit Committee 
held every 6 weeks also provides a degree of 
challenge and scrutiny. 

The Annual Governance Statement also 
provides assurance to the Council in respect of 
the effectiveness of its governance framework. 

 

There was a break in the frequency of Scrutiny 
and Audit Committees early in the pandemic, but 
they resumed as quickly as possible and now 
take place remotely. 

2. Are you aware of any instances 
of non-compliance with relevant 
laws and regulations? 

The Council is not aware of any such non-
compliance. 

 
 

Page 22



 

Appendix 3 

Matters in relation to related parties 

International Standard for Auditing (UK and Ireland) 550 covers auditors’ 
responsibilities relating to related party relationships and transactions. 

The nature of related party relationships and transactions may, in some 
circumstances, give rise to higher risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements than transactions with unrelated parties. 

Because related parties are not independent of each other, many financial 
reporting frameworks establish specific accounting and disclosure requirements 
for related party relationships, transactions and balances to enable users of the 
financial statements to understand their nature and actual or potential effects on 
the financial statements. An understanding of the entity's related party 
relationships and transactions is relevant to the auditor's evaluation of whether 
one or more fraud risk factors are present as required by ISA (UK and Ireland) 
240, because fraud may be more easily committed through related parties. 

What are we required to do? 

As part of our risk assessment procedures, we are required to perform audit 
procedures to identify, assess and respond to the risks of material misstatement 
arising from the entity's failure to appropriately account for or disclose related party 
relationships, transactions or balances in accordance with the requirements of the 
framework. 

Page 23



 
 

 

Enquiries of management – in relation to related parties 

Question 2020-21 Response 

1. Confirm that you have disclosed to 
the auditor: 

 the identity of any related 
parties, including changes 
from the prior period; 

 the nature of the relationships 
with these related parties; and 

 details of any transactions with 
these related parties entered 
into during the period, 
including the type and purpose 
of the transactions. 

All appropriate accounting and disclosures in 
respect of related parties will be disclosed to 
the auditor. Procedures and controls in respect 
of identifying members and senior officers’ 
interests have been strengthened and are 
subject to a continuous process of review and 
further development. 

2. What controls are in place to 
identify, authorise, approve, 
account for and disclose related 
party transactions and 
relationships? 

Current disclosures within the audited annual 
Statement of Accounts include external 
relationships with the Welsh Government, 
levying bodies, jointly controlled operations and 
the Rhondda Cynon Taf Pension Fund. In 
addition, details in respect of members’ 
allowances and senior officers’ remuneration 
are also disclosed. Further controls in respect 
of members and senior officers’ interests have 
been developed. 

Page 24



 

Enquiries of those charged with governance – in relation to related parties 

Question 2020-21 Response 

1. How does the Council, in its role 
as those charged with 
governance, exercise oversight of 
management's processes to 
identify, authorise, approve, 
account for and disclose related 
party transactions and 
relationships? 

Through the Scrutiny Committees forward work 
programmes and the Governance and Audit 
Committee responsible for reviewing the 
provisional Statement of Accounts in the July 
following the end of the financial year 
accounting period. As with management 
responses the process in respect of members 
and senior officers’ interests is subject to 
continuous review in supporting further 
strengthening and development of procedures. 

 
 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Page 1 of 2 - Audit Wales Reports and Recommendations - please contact us in 
Welsh or English / cysylltwch â ni’n Gymraeg neu’n Saesneg. 

 
Cllr. Clive Jones 
Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil 
CF47 8AN 

Reference: HR21-03 

Date issued: 25 May 2021 

Dear Governance and Audit Committee Chair 

Audit Wales Reports and Recommendations 
I hope you are well. 

You may recall that at the end of November 2020, some Audit Wales staff came 
along to a meeting of the Audit Committee Wales chairs’ network to talk about the 
implications for audit committees as a result of the then Local Government and 
Elections (Wales) Bill. As part of this session, we also briefly mentioned our 
expectation that audit committees actively consider our reports. The purpose of this 
letter is to clarify and expand upon this. 

As you will be aware, our performance audit work comprises national studies, local 
government studies (such as our recent report about discretionary services), 
thematic work (such as our financial sustainability assessments) and more locally 
risk-based work. We consult audited bodies about potential topics for our national 
and local government studies, and our local risk-based work is determined through 
our assurance and risk assessment process. Our programme of work for each 
council is set out in our annual audit plans. 

We have found that councils’ approaches to dealing with our performance audit 
reports, proposals for improvement and Local Government studies’ 
recommendations are variable. Councils’ approaches vary from regular reviews, 
audit trackers and action plans to reports and recommendations only being seen 
when we present our annual audit summary.  We are, therefore, not assured that all 
councils are consistently actively considering the findings of our reports.   

24 Cathedral Road / 24 Heol y Gadeirlan 
Cardiff / Caerdydd 

CF11 9LJ 
Tel / Ffôn: 029 2032 0500 

Fax / Ffacs: 029 2032 0600 
Textphone / Ffôn testun: 029 2032 0660 

info@audit.wales / post@archwilio.cymru 
www.audit.wales / www.archwilio.cymru 

Page 27

Agenda Item 7

mailto:info@audit.wales
http://www.audit.wales/
http://www.archwilio.cymru/


Page 2 of 2 - Audit Wales Reports and Recommendations - Please contact us in 
Welsh or English / Cysylltwch â ni’n Gymraeg neu’n Saesneg. 

Given the role of the Governance and Audit Committee is to review and assess the 
risk management, internal control, performance management and corporate 
governance arrangements of the Council, we would expect that all councils’ 
Governance and Audit Committee formally consider all reports of external review 
bodies – principally; Audit Wales, Estyn and the Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW).  

As well as actively considering reports we would expect committees to assure 
themselves that there are arrangements in place to monitor and evaluate progress 
against any recommendations contained in them. The focus here should be on 
holding executives and officers to account to ensure that reports and 
recommendations have been acted upon. Some of our reports may be relevant for 
consideration by scrutiny committees also.  

To help councils to do this, we will have a more targeted approach of distributing final 
reports upon publishing, set out our expectations of how councils should deal with 
our recommendations and find out whether these expectations have been met. In 
addition, under the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act, the Auditor General 
for Wales must produce a timetable which sets out the dates or periods when Audit 
Wales, Estyn and Care Inspectorate Wales will be undertaking their work. We intend 
to issue this timetable to councils and cc to Governance and Audit Committee chairs 
every quarter. We don’t intend to formally present this to Governance and Audit 
Committees each quarter but will liaise with councils to discuss our local approach.  

Audit Wales staff will continue to work flexibly to deliver our programme of work. In 
response to any government advice and subsequent restrictions, we will continue to 
work remotely, building on the arrangements made in 2020, until such time that it is 
safe to resume on-site activities. I remain committed to ensuring that the work of 
Audit Wales staff will not impede the vital activities that public bodies need to do to 
respond to ongoing challenges presented by the COVID-19 pandemic.  

I hope you find this letter helpful. Please liaise with our local team if you have any 
specific needs or concerns. 

Yours sincerely 

 

Huw Rees 

Audit Director 

Page 28



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND ELECTIONS (WALES) 
ACT 2021 & PROPOSED UPDATED COMMITTEE 
TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To provide Committee with an update on the current position with regards to the 

Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 relating to the Governance and 
Audit Committee and the proposed updated Committee terms of reference. 

 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The content of the report and the proposed updated Committee Terms of Reference 

be considered and noted.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Bill [the Bill] was passed by the 

Senedd on 18th November 2020, precisely a year after it was introduced in 2019 and 
was received Royal Assent on 20th January 2021.  
 

3.2 The Bill was one of only two Bills in the Welsh Government’s legislative programme 
to continue during COVID 19.  The Bill was prioritised given the timescales required 
to introduce planned electoral reforms in time for the 2022 local elections.  

 
 
 

Date Written 8th June 2021 

Report Author Mark Thomas 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 21st June 2021 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



3.3 Links to the relevant documents are available here: 
 
 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents/enacted  
 
3.4 The Act  has been the culmination of several years of policy consultation, including: 

 Draft Local Government (Wales) Bill – November 2015 

 Consultation on Electoral Reform – October 2017 

 Reforming Local Government: Resilient and Renewed White Paper - January 
2017  

 Consultation on Powers and Flexibilities – January 2018 

 Strengthening Local Government: Delivering for People Welsh Government 
Green Paper - June 2018. 

 
3.5 The Act is substantial and covers a range of topics from governance and 

performance, electoral reform, public participation, through to regional working. In 
summary the Act introduces: 

 

 Reform of the performance and governance regime; 

 Reforming electoral arrangements for local government; 

 Introduction of a general power of competence; 

 Reforming public participation in local government; and 

 Collaborative Working; 
 
3.6 Elected Members and Scrutiny Members have attended workshops regarding the 

Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021.  The workshop held on the 22nd 
March 2021 took Elected Members and Scrutiny Members through an overview of 
the Act and what is changing in 2021.   

 
 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 The ‘Coming into Force’ provisions of the Act are complex, with some provisions 

having come into force within days of Royal Assent, others within two months and 
the majority via Ministerial statutory instruments. 

 
4.2 Remote attendance and related matters commenced from May 2021 (when the 

emergency coronavirus meeting regulations ended);  
 

 Performance and governance arrangements commenced from April 2021 
(with the final performance report from the 2009 Measure published by 31st 
October 2021).   

 

 Most of the electoral reforms will be introduced in time for implementation at 
the 2022 local elections; and 

 

 The power of general competence, public participation duties, broadcasting of 
meetings and new councillor duties will apply from the 2022 local elections.  

 
 

Page 30

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/asc/2021/1/contents/enacted


 
 
4.3 In relation to the Governance and Audit Committee, the Act introduces previously 

consulted upon reforms to Audit Committees. Section 115 of the Act came into force 
in April 2021. This covers matters relating to the committee title, Performance 
Assessment and Complaints as set out below: 

 

 The title of the committee changing to Governance & Audit Committee 
 

The Committee will need to: 
 

 To consider the Council’s draft Annual Performance Self - Assessment report and 
if deemed necessary may make recommendations for changes to the Council. 
 

 To receive the Council’s finalised Annual Self-Assessment report in respect of a 
financial year as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of that financial 
year. 

 

 At least once during the period between two consecutive ordinary elections of 
councillors to the Council, consider the independent Panel Performance 
Assessment report into which the Council is meeting its performance 
requirements. 

 

 To receive and review the Council’s draft response to the report of the 
independent Panel Performance Assessment and if deemed necessary may 
make recommendations for changes to the statements made in the draft 
response to the Council. 

 

 To review and assess the Council’s ability to deal with complaints effectively. 
 

 To make reports and recommendations in relation to the Council’s ability to deal 
with complaints effectively. 

 
4.4 The other changes in Sections 116, 117 & 118 of the Act come into effect in May 

2022 which relate to Lay membership and Chair. 
 

 One third of the Committees membership must be made up from lay persons 
appointed by the Council. 

 The Governance and Audit Committee shall be chaired by a lay member elected 
by the Committee. 

 The Vice Chair elected by the Committee may be a Vale of Glamorgan Councillor 
or a lay member but must not be a member of the Authority’s Cabinet (Executive) 
or an assistant to its Executive   

  
4.5 Having regard to the requirements above, the name of the Committee has been 

changed and amendments are proposed to the Terms of Reference to reflect the 
requirements of the Act. The opportunity has also been taken to update the Terms of 
Reference having regard to CIPFA guidance. The proposed updated Terms of 
Reference is attached as Appendix 1. 

Page 31



 
4.6 It is proposed that subject to comments from the Committee that the updated terms 

of reference will be considered by Full Council as an update to the Constitution.    
 
 

5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 
 
MARK THOMAS 
HEAD OF REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT 
SERVICE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date 

Draft Local Government (Wales) Bill  
Consultation on Electoral Reform  
Reforming Local Government: Resilient and Renewed White 
Paper  
Consultation on Powers and Flexibilities  
Strengthening Local Government: Delivering for People 
Welsh Government Green Paper  
 

November 2015 
 October 2017  
January 2017  

 
January 2018 
 June 2018 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the 
Council’s Constitution?  

YES 

 

Page 32



Appendix 1 
Proposed Updated Terms of Reference 

 
2.08.01 GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The Council will appoint a Governance & Audit Committee for the purpose set out 
below and specifically to discharge the functions described in Part 3 of this 
Constitution. 

 

Purpose: 

To provide independent assurance of the adequacy of the risk management 
framework, the internal control environment, governance processes, performance 
assessment, complaints arrangements and the integrity of financial reporting.   

 

Composition: 

The membership of the Governance & Audit Committee is to be determined by Council 
subject to: 

 

(a) at least two-thirds of the members of its governance & audit committee are 
members of the authority; 

(b) at least one member of its governance & audit committee is a lay member; 
(c)  no more than one of the members of its governance & audit committee is a 

member of the authority's executive; 
(d)  the senior member of its executive is not a member of its governance & audit 

committee. 
 
Political Balance 
Political balance rules apply. 

 

Chairing the Committee 

The Governance & Audit Committee shall be chaired by a person elected by its 
members; the Chairperson may be a Councillor or a Lay Member but must not be a 
Member of the Executive group.  
 
Voting 

All Governance & Audit Committee Members, including Lay Members, have the right 
to vote on any issue considered by the Committee. 

 

Attendance by Others 

Any Officer or Member called to attend a Governance & Audit Committee meeting 
must do so and must answer any questions asked of them save ones which they could 
refuse to answer if they were in court.  The Committee can invite other persons to 
attend before it, but anyone else so invited is under no compulsion to do so. 

 

Page 33



Frequency of Meetings 

The Governance & Audit Committee must meet at least once a year and must also 
meet if Council so decides, or if at least one third of the Committee’s Members require 
that a meeting be held. Otherwise, the Committee may meet as it wishes subject to 
the usual notice requirements.   

 
Quorum 
The Quorum for the Governance & Audit committee shall be at least half of the 
Councillors eligible to be present.  
 
 
 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
 
 
 
3.05.01 GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
A Committee of 10 Members and 1 Lay Member (see also 2.08.02 Governance & 
Audit Committee). 
 
 
Function 
 
The Governance & Audit Committee will:  
 
(a)  review and scrutinise the authority's financial affairs, 
 
(b)  make reports and recommendations in relation to the authority's financial 

affairs, 
 
(c) review and assess the risk management, internal control, performance 

assessment,  corporate governance and complaints arrangements of the 
authority, 

 
(d)  make reports and recommendations to the authority on the adequacy and 

effectiveness of those arrangements, 
  
(e)   consider the external auditor’s annual report and other relevant reports; and 

to make recommendations on their implementation to Cabinet and/or 
Council as appropriate. 

 
(f) consider specific reports as agreed with the external auditor and to make 

recommendations on their implementation to Cabinet and/or Council as 
appropriate. 

 

Page 34



(g) consider the Council’s draft Annual Performance Self-Assessment report 
and if deemed necessary may make recommendations for changes to the 
Council. 
 

(h) receive the Council’s finalised Annual Self-Assessment report in respect of 
a financial year as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of that 
financial year. 
 

(i) at least once during the period between two consecutive ordinary elections 
of Councillors to the Council, consider the independent Panel Performance 
Assessment report into which the Council is meetings its performance 
requirements. 
 

(j) receive and review the Council’s draft response to the report of the 
independent Panel Performance Assessment and if deemed necessary 
may make recommendations for changes to the statements made in the 
draft response to the Council. 

 
(k) review and assess the authority’s ability to handle complaints effectively, 
 
(l) make reports and recommendations in relation to the authority’s ability to 

handle complaints effectively 
 
(m) oversee the authority's internal and external audit arrangements, and 
 
(n) review the financial statements prepared by the authority. 
 
(o) consider the effectiveness of the authority’s control environment and 

associated counter fraud and corruption arrangements and support the 
Councils ethical framework. 

 
(p) seek assurances that action is being taken on recommendations and risk-

related issues identified by auditors and inspectors.  
 
(q) be satisfied that the authority’s assurance framework and statements, 

including the Annual Governance Statement, properly reflect the risk 
environment and any actions required to improve it, including partnerships 
and collaboration arrangements 

 
(r) approve (but not direct) internal audit’s strategy, plan and monitor 

performance.  
 
(s) receive summary internal audit reports and the main issues arising, and 

seek assurance that action has been taken where necessary.  
 
(t) receive the annual report of the Head of Internal Audit.  
 
(u) consider the reports of external audit and relevant regulatory/inspection 

agencies as appropriate.  
 

Page 35



(v) ensure that there are effective relationships between external and internal 
audit, inspection agencies and other relevant bodies, and that the value of 
the audit process is actively promoted.  

 
(w) review the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion and reports to 

members, and monitor management action in response to the issues raised 
by external audit.  

 
(x) monitor compliance with the Councils Financial Procedure Rules and 

Procurement and Contracting Procedure Rules. 
 
   

It must be noted that nothing referred to above precludes neither Internal or External 
Audit from reporting to the Cabinet/Council or other relevant Committee as 
appropriate. 
 

Page 36



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

Annual Internal Audit Strategy & Plan 2021/22 
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to provide members of the Governance and Audit 

Committee with the Annual Internal Audit Strategy and Risk Based Audit Plan for 
2021/22. 

 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 The Members approve the Annual Internal Audit Strategy and Plan for 2021/22.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The United Kingdom Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (Performance Standard - 

2010 Planning) provides the framework within which an internal audit plan should be 
compiled.   

 
3.2 In line with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards the Head of Internal Audit 

must establish risk-based plans to determine the priorities of the internal audit 
activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals. 

 
3.3 To develop the risk-based plan, the Head of Internal Audit consults with senior 

management and obtains an understanding of the organisation’s strategies, key 
business objectives, associated risks and risk management processes. The Head of 
Internal Audit must review and adjust the plan, as necessary, in response to changes 
in the organisation’s business, risks, operations, programmes, systems and controls. 

Date Written 8th June 2021 

Report Author Mark Thomas 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 21st June 2021 

Page 37

Agenda Item 9



3.4 In order to produce the Internal Audit plan the following information is taken into 
account: 

• Corporate Risk Register;  
• Corporate Plan;  
• Key Financial Systems;  
• Grant Claims that require Internal Audit certification;  
• Follow-up reviews;  
• Audit reviews that are carried forward from the previous audit plan;  
• Discussions with the Senior Leadership Team, including the Chief 

Executive, Section 151 officer and other senior officers. 
 

3.5 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards require a risk-based audit plan to be 
produced to cover the Council’s overall control environment including risk, 
governance and internal controls as far as practicable.   

 
3.6 By taking into account the sources of information noted above, this supports Internal 

Audit to achieve the following:  
 

• Comply with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards in compiling the 
draft annual Audit Plan; 

• Enable the Governance and Audit Committee to monitor the adequacy 
of the risk management framework and the associated control 
environment of the Council for 2021/22 based on the audit reviews set 
out in the draft Annual Audit Plan; and  

• Enables the Head of Internal Audit to form an opinion on the risk, 
governance and internal controls of the organisation. 

 
3.7 Due regard to the changes to the way the Council is operating since Covid-19, 

including any new risks as a result of remote working have been considered and 
included within the draft audit plan for 2021/22.  

 
 

4. Current Situation/Proposal 

4.1 Attached at Appendix A is the draft Internal Audit Strategy document for 2021/22.  It 
demonstrates how the Internal Audit Service will be delivered and developed in 
accordance with our Terms of Reference. The Strategy will be reviewed and updated 
annually in consultation with stakeholders namely the Governance and Audit 
Committee, Corporate Management Board, External Auditors and Senior 
Management.  

4.2 The 2021/22 draft Annual Risk Based Plan of work has been formulated in 
compliance with the PSIAS. The draft detailed plan is attached at Appendix B. 
 

4.3 The proposed plan continues to recognise particular risks arising from COVID-19, 
availability of audit and service staff and challenges arising from the remote ways of 
working. The plan is also flexible to allow for changing circumstances and events 
that may occur, such as requests to respond to new issues that may emerge. 

Page 38



4.4   Internal Audit work will be undertaken remotely using video conferencing (e.g. 
Microsoft Teams) and digital solutions as a basis for meetings and sharing 
documents and data. 

4.5 The proposed plan at Appendix B will offer sufficient coverage to be able to provide 
an opinion at the end of 2021/22.  
 

4.6 The Governance and Audit Committee will receive updates on how the plan is being 
delivered and any changes that may be required. 

 
 

 

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
5.1 There are no resource implications as a direct consequence of this report.   

 

MARK THOMAS 
HEAD OF REGIONAL AUDIT SERVICE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES  
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
Audit Universe 

 
Audit Planning Files 

 

2020/21 
 

2020/21 

Internal Audit Office 
 

Internal Audit Office 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  
 

No 

  

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A                                                              

Page | 1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

DRAFT 
 

STRATEGY  
&  

ANNUAL RISK BASED  
INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

 
2021/2022 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



Appendix A                                                              

Page | 2 
 

 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 Internal Audit objectively examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the 

control environment as a contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective 
use of resources.  This opinion forms part of the framework of assurances that the 
Council receives and should be used to help inform the Annual Governance 
Statement.  The purpose of this document is to provide a detailed Internal Audit Risk 
Based Plan for 2021/2022. 
 

1.2 The audit plan ensures that the risks facing the Council are adequately addressed 
and internal audit resources are effectively utilised.  The standards for “proper 
practice” in relation to internal audit are laid down in the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS). 
 

1.3 The Internal Audit Service is delivered through the expanded shared service that 
came into existence on 1st April 2019. The service is hosted by the Vale of 
Glamorgan Council and provides internal audit services to the Vale, Bridgend, 
Merthyr Tydfil & Rhondda Cynon Taf Councils. The arrangement is underpinned by a 
detailed legal agreement between the four Councils which sets out a range of 
obligations (the core service is the same for each Council but there are differences in 
what is provided outside of the core service).  The service reports to the four 
Governance & Audit Committees and is overseen at a strategic level by the Board 
which consists of the Chief Finance Officers of the four Councils. 
 
 

2. Definition of Internal Audit 
 

2.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) defines Internal Audit as follows: 
 

“Internal audit is an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity 
designed to add value and improve an organisation’s operations.  It helps an 
organisation accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined 
approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of risk management, 
control and governance processes”. 

 
 
3. Requirement for Internal Audit 

 
3.1 Internal Audit is a statutory service. Part 3 of The Accounts and Audit (Wales) 

Regulations 2018 concerns financial management and internal control. Regulation 5 
(responsibility for internal control and financial management) of Part 3 directs that: 
 

‘The relevant body must ensure that there is a sound system of internal 
control which facilitates the effective exercise of that body’s functions and 
which includes: 

(a) Arrangements for the management of risk, and 
(b) Adequate and effective financial management.’ 
 
 

Page 42



Appendix A                                                              

Page | 3 
 

 
3.2 Regulation 7 (Internal Audit) of Part 3 directs that: 
 

‘A relevant body must maintain an adequate and effective system of internal 
audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control.’ 

 
3.3 PSIAS state: 

 
“The chief audit executive must establish risk-based plans to determine the 
priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.  
The risk based plan must take into account the requirement to produce an 
annual internal audit opinion” 

 
3.4 The overall opinion issued each year by the Head of Internal Audit on the adequacy 

and effectiveness of the control environment is used as a key source of assurance to 
support the Annual Governance Statement. 
 

4. Section 151 Officer Responsibility 
 

4.1 Internal Audit also has an important role to support the Council’s Section 151 Officer 
in discharging their statutory responsibilities, which include: - 
 

 S151 Local Government Act 1972 – to ensure the proper administration of 
financial affairs. 

 S114 Local Government Act 1988 – to ensure the Council’s expenditure is 
lawful. 
 

5. Development of the Internal Audit Plan 
 

5.1 The annual internal audit plan has been prepared after considering the risk registers 
and the views of Corporate Directors and Senior Management as to where audit 
resource is most needed.  In line with the PSIAS, this plan should enable Internal 
Audit to maximise the value and assurance it provides to the Council, whilst ensuring 
it fulfils its statutory obligation to review and report on the Council’s internal control 
environment, governance and risk management arrangements. As was the case for 
the 2020/21 plan, risks arising from the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic have also been 
considered when formulating the 2021/22 plan 
 

6. Risk Based Approach 
 

6.1 The internal audit function will be delivered in accordance with the Internal Audit 
Charter 2021/22, as presented to the Governance & Audit Committee in April 2021.  
The Charter defines the role, scope, independence, authority and responsibility of 
the internal audit service and audits will be delivered in accordance with the Charter.   

 
6.2 Risk based work is critical to the Council, as it seeks to improve the risk awareness 

of staff and improve overall control.  The internal audit work programme is designed 
to provide assurance that identified significant risks are being managed effectively.  
As part of this process Internal Audit will also examine the risk management and 
governance arrangements. 

Page 43



Appendix A                                                              

Page | 4 
 

 
6.3 By adopting a risk-based audit approach there is a clear linkage between the 

significant risks identified in the Council’s Corporate Risk Register and the work 
undertaken by Internal Audit in providing assurance against these.  As a result, the 
starting point for the audit plan approach is an understanding of the Council’s 
objectives and risks. 

 
 

7. Methodology  
 

7.1 A summary of our approach to the development of the Audit Plan for 2021/22 is set 

out below.  The Plan is driven by the Council’s organisational objectives and 

priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan and the risks that may prevent the Council 

from meeting these objectives. 

 

 

                                                               Obtain information regarding corporate and 

                                                               service objectives and risks. 

 

 

                                                                                                     

                                                                          Identify the auditable services, systems 

                                                                functions in the Council 

 

 
                                                                Assess the audit risk of each auditable unit, 
                                                                taking into account inherent risk and control 
                                                                risk.       
 

 

 
                                                                Determine the Audit Plan for 2021/22 based 
                                                                on corporate priorities and risks and taking 
                                                                into account the audit resource.     
 

 

 
                                                                Include within the Audit Plan those                
                                                                requirements additional to those identified             
                                                                through the risk assessment process. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Step 1 
Understand corporate 
objectives and risks. 

Step 2 

Define the Audit Universe 

Step 3 
Assess the risk of each 

auditable area. 

Step 4 

Derive the audit plan 

Step 5 
Include other mandatory 

auditable areas. 

Page 44



Appendix A                                                              

Page | 5 
 

 
8. The Risk Assessment Process 

 
8.1 The information which has been used to prepare the risk assessment and proposed 

internal audit plan has been collected and collated from several different sources.  
The starting point for a risk-based audit approach is an understanding of the 
Council’s priorities and risks.  This has been achieved by meeting with Senior Staff to 
understand what they perceive to be the main risks within their individual areas and 
where they feel internal audit could provide assurance that such risks are being 
effectively mitigated and managed, by reviewing the Corporate Plan, Service Plans 
and Corporate Risk Register. This information is used to inform and design the audit 
plan. 

 
8.2 The plan is based on an underlying risk assessment.  The risks existing within each 

area are identified for audit as part of the audit planning process.  The audits which 
make up the plan have been assessed by priority.   
 

9. The Annual Internal Audit Plan 
 

9.1 In accordance with the PSIAS, the Head of Audit is responsible for developing a risk-
based annual audit plan which considers the Council's risk management framework.  
Within the Standards there is also a requirement for the Head of Audit to review and 
adjust the plan, as necessary, in response to changes in the Council's business, 
risks, operations, programs, systems, controls and resources.  The Head of Audit 
must also ensure that Internal Audit resources are appropriate, sufficient and 
effectively deployed to achieve the approved plan.  
 

9.2 An annual plan is derived following the audit risk assessment, whereby audits will be 
selected based on the greatest perceived risk.  The Internal Audit Service will ensure 
that most effort is focused on high risk areas while, at the same time, not ignoring the 
potential for problems that may materialise in other areas. 

 
9.3 Whilst the Internal Audit Service will adopt a risk-based approach to determine 

relative risk, there will remain areas where a purely cyclical approach may still be 
required i.e. programme of school audits, financial systems, and grant verifications. 

 
9.4 Consideration is also given to planned external audit work to minimise duplication 

and to maximise audit coverage. 
 
9.5 Appendix B is the detailed schedule of audits planned to be completed during 

2021/2022 for each of the Council’s Directorates including Cross Cutting.   
 
9.6 The Head of Internal Audit will monitor progress against the audit plan.  Where there 

is a need for material changes to the plan; a revised plan will be re-submitted to the 
Governance & Audit Committee for endorsement.  The Governance & Audit 
Committee will also be advised of performance against the audit plan and be kept 
informed of the results undertaken. 
 
 

Page 45



Appendix A                                                              

Page | 6 
 

9.7 The COVID 19 pandemic has meant that most Council staff have worked remotely 
since March 2020 and this is likely to continue to a large extent during 2021/22. 
Therefore, systems & processes have been adjusted to cater for the new ways of 
working. Similarly, the Internal Audit team will continue to work remotely, conducting 
audits and obtaining evidence digitally. Each audit will consider the potential impact 
of COVID 19 and remote working to ensure adequate controls and governance 
arrangements remained in place.        

 
 

10. Resource Requirement 
 

10.1 Resource requirements are reviewed each year as part of the audit planning process 
and are discussed and agreed with the Regional Internal Audit Service (RIAS) 
Board.  
 
   

11. Contingencies 
 

11.1 The internal audit plan needs to be flexible enough to enable the internal audit 
service to be able respond, as required, to situations arising during the period 
covered by the plan.  A contingency reserve element has been built in to assist in 
dealing with any such matters arising.   

 
 

12. Audit Approach 
 

12.1 The primary purpose of an audit review is to provide an independent and objective 
opinion to the Council on the framework of internal control, risk management and 
governance in operation and to stimulate improvement.  

 
12.2 The approach will be : 
 

o Fieldwork will take place following agreement of the audit objectives. 
 

o A draft report will be prepared and provided to Management for review and 
comment with an opportunity given for discussion or clarification. 

 
o The final report will incorporate Management comments together with a 

Management Action Plan for the implementation of recommendations. 
 

o The Governance and Audit Committee will be advised of the outcome of the 
audit and may receive a copy of the Final Report. 

 
o Any serious issues arising during the audit review will be promptly reported to 

the Head of Internal Audit to determine the impact on the scope of the review.  
Serious issues will also be brought to management’s attention to enable 
appropriate remedial action to be taken prior to being formally published in the 
audit report. 

 

Page 46



Appendix A                                                              

Page | 7 
 

o The audit report will provide an overall assurance opinion, based on the 
auditor’s professional judgement of the effectiveness of the framework of 
internal control, risk management and governance. 

 
12.3 The audit assurance categories are : 

 

AUDIT ASSURANCE CATEGORY CODE 

Substantial A sound system of governance, risk management and control exists, 
with internal controls operating effectively and being consistently 
applied to support the achievement of objectives in the area audited.  

Reasonable There is a generally sound system of governance, risk management 
and control in place. Some issues, non-compliance or scope for 
improvement were identified which may put at risk the achievement of 
objectives in the area audited. 

Limited Significant gaps, weaknesses or non-compliance were identified. 
Improvement is required to the system of governance, risk 
management and control to effectively manage risks to the 
achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

No Assurance Immediate action is required to address fundamental gaps, 
weaknesses or non-compliance identified. The system of governance, 
risk management and control is inadequate to effectively manage 
risks to the achievement of objectives in the area audited. 

 
12.4 A Management Action Plan will form an integral part of the report and will be used to 

record: 
 

o Those risks considered to be inadequately controlled; 
o A prioritisation of audit recommendations and the actions management 

propose to bring the risks within acceptable parameters, the officer(s) 
responsible for those actions and the dates for completion. 

 
12.5 Audit recommendations will be prioritised as follows : 
 

RECOMMENDATION CATEGORISATION 

Risk may be viewed as the chance, or probability, of one or more of the organisation’s 
objectives not being met. It refers both to unwanted outcomes which might arise, and to 
the potential failure to realise desired results. The criticality of each recommendation is as 
follows: 

High Priority Action that is considered imperative to ensure that the organisation is 
not exposed to high risks. 

Medium 
Priority 

Action that is considered necessary to avoid exposure to significant 
risks. 

Low Priority Action that is considered desirable and should result in enhanced 
control. 

Page 47



Appendix A                                                              

Page | 8 
 

12.6 The implementation of the agreed recommendations will be monitored. Management 
will be contacted and asked to provide feedback on the status of each agreed 
recommendation once the target date for implementation has been reached. 
 

12.7 Any audits concluded with a no assurance or limited assurance opinion will be 
subject to a follow up audit. 

 
13. Follow Up Reviews 

 
13.1 Where significant gaps in the control environment have been identified and where 

either limited or no assurance has been given; then these audits will be subject to a 
follow up.  The timing of the follow up is very much dependent on available 
resources, but Internal Audit’s aim will always be to complete the follow up within 
three to six months of completion of the audit (depending on the assurance level). 
 

14. Reports to the Governance & Audit Committee  
 

14.1 A status report on internal audit work will be present to the Governance & Audit 
Committee on a regular basis.The purpose of these reports is to provide an update 
on the progress made against the delivery of the Internal Audit Plan.  The report will 
provide details of audits completed to date, the assurance opinions given and the 
number and type of recommendations made.   
 

15. Annual Assurance Report. 
 

15.1 A formal annual report to the Governance & Audit Committee presenting the Head of 
Internal Audit’s opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the framework 
of governance, risk management and internal control, will be published to enable it to 
be taken into account when preparing the Council’s Annual Corporate Governance 
Statement.  The format of the Head of Internal Audit’s report will follow that set out in 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and will include: 

 An opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s 
framework of internal control, risk management and governance, 

 Disclose any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reasons for 
qualification; 

 Present a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived, 
including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies; 

 Any issues considered by the Head of Audit to be particularly relevant to the 
Corporate Governance Statement; 

 A comparison of work undertaken with that planned, with a summary of 
internal audit performance for the year; and comment on compliance with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Internal Audit’s Quality Assurance 
and Improvement Programme. 

 
 
 

Page 48



Appendix B 
 

REF 

NO 

SERVICE AREA ASSURANCE WORK 

1 Corporate Annual Governance Statement 

2 Corporate Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policies 

3 Corporate Corporate Asset Management - allocations, 

disposals, policies and compliance 

4 Corporate Corporate Risks & Follow up on 

Recommendations 

5 Corporate COVID - Remote Working Questionnaire 

6 Corporate Cyber Security 

7 Corporate Embed 5 ways of working into audit Process. - 

Future Generations Act 

8 Corporate National Fraud Initiative (NFI) 

9 Finance & ICT Comparison of Procurement Rules/Thresholds 

10 Finance & ICT ICT Equipment Inventories 

11 Finance & ICT Major Financial System - Housing Benefit 

12 Finance & ICT Major Financial System - Cash Income 

13 Finance & ICT Major Financial System – Creditors 2020/21 

14 Finance & ICT Major Financial System: Bank Reconciliation 

15 Finance & ICT Major Financial System: Budgetary Control 

System  

16 Finance & ICT Major Financial System: Main Accounting 

System 

17 Finance & ICT Purchasing Cards 

18 Housing & 

Regeneration 

Temporary housing solutions process and 

procedures, incl. compliance with the statutory 

duty. 

19 HR & Corporate DBS checks - Employees/Contractors Systems 

and Procedures 

20 Learning Certification of Grant Claims-School 

Improvement Grant  

21 Learning Cyfarthfa High School - follow up 2021/22 

22 Learning Goetre Primary School - follow up 

23 Learning School Private Funds-monitoring arrangements 

24 Learning Schools - Follow up on a selection of schools 

tbc 

25 Learning Schools -Introduction of Self Evaluation 

/Control Risk Self-Assessment - Pilots  

26 Learning Schools Meals Income System 

27 Learning Schools Negative Balances 

28 Neighbourhood 

Services 

Capital Contract Monitoring and Payment of 

Accounts and Valuations 

Page 49



Appendix B 
 

29 Neighbourhood 

Services 

Final Accounts - Contracts 

REF 

NO 

SERVICE AREA ASSURANCE WORK 

30 Neighbourhood 

Services 

Property Maintenance Inspection Plans & 

Regimes 

31 Neighbourhood 

Services 

Vehicles Fuel System 

32 Public Protection & 

Safety 

School Transport 

33 Regeneration & 

Corporate  

Certification of Grant Claim -  Trailgazers 

34 Regeneration & 

Corporate  

Certification of Grant Claim - Sunse 

35 School Planning & 

Improvement 

Additional Learning Needs 

36 Social Services Deputyships & Appointeeships 

37 Social Services In House Fostering Services 

38 Social Services IRE payments 

39 Social Services Looked After Children Placements - 

Independent Fostering Services (IFAs)/Fostering 

and Provision for Foster Parents 

40 Social Services Looked After Children Respite and Emergency 

Services 

41 Social Services WCCIS 

 

Page 50



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Governance and Audit Committee 

Members with the Forward Work Programme for 2021/22. 
 
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 That Members approve the Forward Work Programme for 2021/22.  
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The core functions of an effective Governance and Audit Committee include the 

responsibility to: 
 

 consider the adequacy of the risk management framework, the internal control 
environment and the integrity of the financial reporting, governance processes, 
performance assessment and complaints arrangements. 

 seek assurances that action is being taken on risk-related issues identified by 
auditors and inspectors. Consider the effectiveness of the Council’s anti-fraud 
and corruption arrangements. 

 be satisfied that the Council’s assurance statements properly reflect the risk 
environment and any actions required to improve it. 

Date Written 8th June 2021 

Report Author Mark Thomas/Helen Harbord 

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 21st June 2021 

Page 51

Agenda Item 10



 oversee the work of internal audit (including the annual plan and strategy) and 
monitor performance. 

 review summary internal audit reports and the main issues arising and seek 
assurance that action has been taken where necessary. 

 receive the annual report of the Head of Audit. 

 consider the reports of external audit and inspection agencies, where 
applicable. 

 ensure that there are effective relationships between external and internal 
audit, inspection agencies and other relevant bodies, and that the value of the 
audit process is actively promoted. 

 review and approve the financial statements, external auditor’s opinion and 
reports to Members, and monitor management action in response to the issues 
raised by external audit. 

 
3.2  Effective Governance and Audit Committees help to raise the profile of governance, 

internal control, risk management and financial reporting issues within an 
organisation, as well as providing a forum for the discussion of issues raised by 
internal and external auditors. They enhance public trust and confidence in the 
financial governance of an authority. 

 
4. Current situation/proposal 
 
4.1 In order to assist the Committee in ensuring that due consideration is given to all 

aspects of their core functions the proposed Forward Work Programme for 2021/22 
is attached at Appendix A. Committee Members are asked to endorse this schedule, 
confirm the list of people they would like to invite for each item (if appropriate), and 
indicate whether any additional information or research is required. 

 
4.2  Shown below are the items scheduled to be presented at the Committee’s next 

meeting on 19th July 2021.  
 

 Proposed Agenda Items – 19th July 2021 
1 Update on Corporate Risks 

2 Annual Internal Audit Report 

3 Draft Statement of Accounts including Draft Annual Governance Statement 

4 Internal Audit Information Reports  

5 Updated Forward Work Programme 2021/22 

 
4.3  There may be additional agenda items presented to the Committee as the Local 

Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 comes into effect, particularly in respect 
of the Committee’s new responsibilities in relation to performance and complaints, 
and these will be added to the Forward Work Programme as necessary.   

 
  
 
 
 

  
 

Page 52



5.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
5.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 
 
MARK THOMAS 
HEAD OF REGIONAL AUDIT SERVICE 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 
CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 

AND CORPORATE SERVICES 
 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
 

  

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  

No 

 

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
Frequency 19th April 21 21st June 21 19th July 21 6th September 21 18th October 21 29th November 21 10th January 22 28th February 22 4th April 22

Governance 

Appointment of Chair and Vice Chair Annually X

Annual Risk Management Report & Corporate Risk 

Register Annually X

Update on Corporate Risks Quarterly X X X

Draft AGS Annually X

Final AGS Annually X

6 monthly update on AGS Annually X

Annual Performance Report Annually X

Self Evaluation Report Annually X

Ability to deal with Complaints Annually X

Annual Report Complaints Annually X

Audit Wales 

Grants Certification Annually X

Audit Plan Annually X

Annual Audit Summary Annually X X

Audit Of Accounts Annually X

Other Reports as they arise Ad hoc

Internal Audit

Audit Charter Annually X

Internal Audit Strategy & Plan Annually X

Progress against Plan Quarterly X X

Annual Report Annually X

Local Government and Elections Act Ad hoc X

Internal Audit Information Reports Each meeting X X X X X X X X X

Accountancy 

Draft Statement of Accounts Annually X

Final Statement of Accounts Annually X

Audit Enquiries those charged with Governance Annually X

Governance & Audit Committee Forward Work Programme 2021/22

P
age 55



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Civic Centre, Castle Street,  
Merthyr Tydfil    CF47 8AN 

 

Main Tel: 01685 725000 www.merthyr.gov.uk 
 

 
 

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 

To:  Chair, Ladies and Gentlemen 

 

ISSUED INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTS  
 
 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Governance & Audit Committee of issued 

Internal Audit Reports.    
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS that 
 
2.1 Members determine any reports they wish to consider in more detail at a future 

meeting including receiving updates from appropriate officers on progress made in 
implementing recommendations.   

 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 
3.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Governance & Audit Committee of issued 

Internal Audit Reports. These are listed in table 1 below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Date Written 10th June 2021 

Report Author Mark Thomas/Helen Harbord  

Exempt/Non Exempt Non Exempt 

Committee Date 21st June 2021 

Page 57

Agenda Item 11



Table 1 
 

Report Title Audit Opinion No. of 
Recommendations 

 

Cash Income  Satisfactory 12 

Cyfarthfa High School (Follow 

up Review) 

Unsatisfactory 18 

Safeguarding Satisfactory 3 

Corporate Risks/Risk 

Management Systems  

Satisfactory  7 

 
 
3.2 A copy of the reports have been provided to Members.   
 
 

4.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATION(S) 
 
4.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report. 
 
 
MARK THOMAS 
HEAD OF REGIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT 
SERVICE 

 
COUNCILLOR ANDREW BARRY 

CABINET MEMBER FOR GOVERNANCE 
AND CORPORATE SERVICES 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Title of Document(s) Document(s) Date Document Location 

 
Various Internal Audit 
reports 

 
Various 

  
Internal Audit Service 

 
 
 

 

Does the report contain any issue that may impact the Council’s 
Constitution?  

No 

 

Page 58


	Agenda
	5 Audit Wales - Annual Audit Summary 2020 - Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
	About the Council
	Some of the Services the Council provides

	Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council
	Annual audit summary 2020
	The Auditor General’s duties
	We complete work each year to meet the following duties

	What we found
	Audit of Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council’s 2019-20 Accounts
	For 2019-20:

	Well-being of Future Generations Examination – The delivery of the Flying Start Programme (February 2020)
	Continuous Improvement
	Financial Sustainability (March 2020)
	Assessment of progress to address key concerns (March 2021)
	National Fraud Initiative
	Other Inspectorates
	Local Government Studies
	Review of Public Services Boards (October 2019)
	Progress in implementing the Violence Against Women, Domestic Abuse and Sexual Violence Act (November 2019)
	Rough Sleeping in Wales – Everyone’s Problem; No One’s Responsibility (July 2020)
	Better Law Making (September 2020)
	Commercialisation in Local Government (October 2020)
	Work carried out in 2020-21


	6 Audit Enquiries to those charged with Governance and Management 2020/21
	7 Audit Wales Letter to Committee Chairs
	Audit Wales Reports and Recommendations

	8 Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 and Proposed Updated Committee Terms of Reference
	Appendix 1 MTCBC Extract Governance  Audit Committee

	9 Annual Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2021/22
	Appendix A Draft Strategy 2021-22
	Appendix B MTCBC Internal Audit Plan 202122

	10 Governance and Audit Committee Forward Work Programme 2021/22
	Appendix 1 Forward Work Programme  202122

	11 Internal Audit Information Reports

